HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 28, 2017
2:04 p.m

2:04: 25 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Foster called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 2:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Neal Foster, Co-Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Co-Chair
Representative Les Gara, Vice-Chair
Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki
Representative Dan Otiz
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Cathy Tilton
Representative Tanm e WI son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Steve Thonpson; Representative Jason G enn.

ALSO PRESENT

Teresa Holt, Long Term Care Onrbudsman - Al aska Mental
Health Trust Authority, Departnent of Revenue, Juneau;
Senator dick Bishop, Sponsor; Pete Fellnman, Staff, Senator

Cick Bi shop; Ni na Kenpel , CEQ, Al aska Communi ty
Foundati on, Anchorage; Sara Race, Director - Division of
Adm ni strati on, Depar t ment of Revenue, Juneau;
Representative Andy Josephson, Sponsor ; Rick Steiner,

Professor, University of Al aska; Sean McQuire, Al askans for
Wl dlife, Fairbanks.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Deborah Bitney, Vice President and Chief Adnministrative
O ficer, Rasnmuson Foundation, Anchorage; Elizabeth Ripley,
President of the Foraker group, Atlanta, GA;, Daniel Lynch,
Self, Soldotna; Joy Steward, Self, Honer; Tammy Smith, NEA
Al aska, Anchorage; Bill Wight, United Wy of Tanana

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



Val | ey, Fairbanks; M ke Coons, Self, Palnmer; Al Barrette,
Sel f, Fairbanks; Tim Lescner, Self, Anchorage.

SUMVARY
HB 105 DENALI WOLF SPECI AL MANAGEMENT AREA

HB 105 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

SB 78 PERM FUND DI VI DEND CONTRI BUTI ONS/ LOTTERY
SB 73 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 83 PROTECT: VULNERABLE ADULTS/ LONG TERM CARE
CSSB 87(HSS) was REPORTED QUT of Conmittee with a
"do pass" recommendation and with two previously
published zero fiscal not es: FNL1( HSS) and

FN2( REV) .

#sb83
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 83(HSS)

"An Act relating to the protection of vulnerable
adults and residents of long termcare facilities."

2:06:41 PM

TERESA HOLT, LONG TERM CARE OVBUDSMAN - ALASKA NMENTAL
HEALTH TRUST AUTHORITY, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, JUNEAU
explained the bill would bring the state into conformance
with the federal regul ations.

Representati ve W | son referred to Section 11 AS
47.62.030(b), which allowed the state to step in when the
state felt that the decision may adversely affect the
safety, health, and welfare of the older person. She
wondered whether the bill gave the state nore power than
was currently in statute.

Ms. Holt answered that Section B was about the office being
able to nmake referrals and share information w th other
agencies that investigate the 1issue. She remarked that
Section 1 only allowed the agency to share information, if
t hat person was at risk and/or unable to give consent.

2:10: 01 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



Representative WIson provided a hypothetical scenario
regarding a situation where a person did have a guardi an.
She wondered whether the agency could report a fraud or
request additional information.

Ms. Holt responded that it would occur, should the guardian
not act in the best interest of the individual.

Representative WIson stressed that she was tal king about
someone who was responsive, but chose to give the power of
attorney to someone el se. She wondered whether the program
gave additional powers to the departnent.

Ms. Holt replied that the program only addressed the power
to give a referral to another agency.

Representative WIson surmsed that the bill gave the
authority to further investigate, based on the feeling of
t he onmbudsman.

Ms. Holt provided an exanple of a situation that would give
reason to utilize the provision outlined in the
| egi sl ation.

Co-Chair Foster asked Vice-Chair Gara to review the fisca
not es.

Vi ce-Chair Gara discussed the fiscal notes.

Co-Chair Seaton MOWED to report CSSB 83(HSS) out of
Commi ttee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CSSB 87(HSS) was REPORTED QUT of Conmittee with a "do pass”
recoommendation and wth tw previously published zero
fiscal notes: FNL(HSS) and FN2(REV).

#sb78
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 78(FIN)

"An Act creating the education endowrent fund and the
dividend raffle fund; authorizing donations from the
permanent fund dividend for educational purposes and
to enter the permanent fund dividend raffle; relating

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



to transfers from the dividend raffle fund and the
education endowrent fund; relating to the duties of
the Departnent of Revenue; relating to the definition
of 'ganbling'; and providing for an effective date."

2:15: 00 PM

Co- Chai r Seaton MOVED to ADOPT proposed comittee
substitute for CSSB 78, Wrk Draft 30-LS0534\L (Martin,
04/ 15/ 17) .

Representative Wl son OBJECTED for discussion.

Co-Chair Foster invited the testifiers to put thenselves on
t he record.

SENATOR CLI CK BI SHOP, SPONSOR, introduced the |egislation

He relayed that the bill was a creative way to fund
education. He suggested that the bill would go a |ong way
to funding education. He thought it was high tine the
| egi slature | ooked to other funding sources. The fund was
conpletely voluntary. He had |ooked at other ways such as
bring back the head tax - which did not have good
reception.

Co- Chair Seaton had just received communication from fol ks
i n Honmer asking about that |egalizing ganbling.

2:20:21 PM

PETE FELLMAN, STAFF, SENATOR CLICK BISHOP, anending the
current ganbling law to allow an additional raffle - to be
exenpt from the ganbling laws in the state already in
current | aw

Vice-Chair Gara appreciated the senator thinking outside of
the box. He could not tell how nmuch of the bill the state
woul d receive back. It was close to $5 mllion

M. Fellman responded that it would be difficult to know
what would go directly into the education fund.

Vi ce-Chair Gara thought all good ideas should nove forward.
He expressed a concern about people donating part of their
Permanent Fund Dividend (PFD). There was nothing in the
bill stated that if a person donated their noney education
woul d go up.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



Senator Bishop responded that he had another senator that
initially did not like the bill but did end up like the
bill once the nane was changed from lottery to raffle. He
commented that the legislature still had the power to
appropri ate.

Representative GQuttenberg had a simlar concern as Co-Chair
Seaton. He wondered about the federal |aw even though the
state already had its own | aw.

2:26:42 PM

M. Fellman was happy to review the changes to the
conmittee substitute.

Representative GQuttenberg stated that he wanted a "nod from
the staff" about the changes.

Representati ve Kawasaki surm sed that there were currently
two options for donating wthin the PFD program He
wonder ed whether the | egislation provided a third option.

M. Fellman responded in the affirmative.

Representati ve Kawasaki comented that the |egislature had
recently received a letter from Pick dick Gve, which
stated that there mght have an unintended consequence of
| ess nobney going to the charities.

\V/ g Fell man responded that nany people commtted to
charitabl e donations for belief in the organization and for
t he tax break.

Representati ve Kawasaki felt that the ganbling was a tax on
poor people and targeted to people who were "bad at
statistics.” He understood that people supported education
and there were also people that wanted to win a lottery. He
asked for coment regarding that concern.

2:29:41 PM

M. Fellman asked Representative Kawasaki to repeat his
guesti ons.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki repeated his question.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



M. Fellman replied that the raffle was |imted, and could
only be played once a year from the PFD. He stressed that
the limt was the maxi mum anount of the PFD

Representati ve Kawasaki asked if it precluded a parent from
using their child s PFD

M. Fellman added that only adults 18 and older could
partici pate.

2:34: 30 PM

Representative WIson noted that Pick Cdick Gve had a
sweepst akes.

M. Fellman responded in the affirmative.

Representative Wlson felt that the bill did the sane thing
as the sweepst akes.

M. Fell man agreed.

Representative Guttenberg clarified that the committee was
referencing version L of the bill.

Co- Chair Foster responded in the affirmative.
M. Fellman reviewed the changes in the CS:
Expl anati on of Changes CS CSSB78 (30-LS0534\L):

Proposed House Finance CS reduces the raffle fund
cap from $500 million to $300 nmillion. The change
will allow the fund to start funding education
sooner and reduce the maximum prizes payouts.

Page 5, line 17:
Del et e “$500, 000, 000"
| nsert “$300, 000, 000"

Page 5, line 18:
Del et e “$500, 000, 000"
| nsert “$300, 000, 000"

The second change proposed is to reduce the prize

payout percentages so nore noney stays in the
raffl e fund.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



Page 6, line 5:
Del ete “10”
| nsert “eight”

Page 6, line 7:
Delete “five”
| nsert “four”

Page 6, line 9:
Del ete “three”
| nsert “two”

Page 6, line 11:
Delete “two”
| nsert “one”

Representative Wl son W THDREW her OBJECTI ON

There bei ng NO  OBJECTI QN, t he pr oposed commttee
substitute, CSSB 78(FI N} was adopted.

M. Fellman shared that there was a concern about securing
the raffle. Therefore, the cap was reduced, so it would put
noney into the endowrent fund sooner. He stated that the
cap was now at $300 mllion, so everything above that
anount would be put into the fund. He shared that the
payouts were al so reduced by a few percent ages.

2:39: 47 PM

Vice-Chair Gara wondered whether soneone would expect an
increase in education funding, should they participate in
t he program

M. Fellman replied that education funding was already seen
as being reduced, and felt that the public would expect
nore cuts in the time of oil price. He hoped that the price
of oil would increase, so the budget could secure. He
remar ked that there were other neasures that would add nore
nmoney to educati on.

Vice-Chair Gara thought the positive portion of the bil
was that nore noney would be put into the education fund.

M. Fellman was happy to work with the commttee to devel op
a plan.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



Vi ce-Chair Gara could be wong as wel|.

Representative W son suggested that a disclainmer would not
necessarily because of the application for a PFD.

M. Fellman answered that it would be added to the previous
year's fundi ng.

2:44: 48 PM

Representative WIson asked M. Fellman how nmuch would
likely be gained in the first year.

M. Fellman stated that the prize would be $5 mllion.

2:51: 56 PM

Representative WIson asked if the state was starting at 50
percent, but it would grow up to 65 percent as the
donati ons i ncreased.

M. Fellman replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Seaton noted that the fund started at $10 mllion.
He queried the annual receiving for Pick dick G ve.

M. Fellman replied that it was between $2.5 mllion and $3
mllion. He remarked that Pick Cick Gve distributed the
noney to over 600 organizations. He did not know their
adm ni stration costs.

Co-Chair Seaton remarked that queried an analysis that
determned that there would be three times the anount of
donations in the new program than the donations to Pick
Cick Gve.

M. Fellman replied that Pick dick Gve was a conplicated
program He stated that the proposed program was not
connected to Pick Cick G ve.

2:57:14 PM

Co-Chair Seaton asked if any study showed the inpact of
Pick dick Gve, wth the inducenent to pull out $10
mllion.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



M. Fellnman answered that the bill had only been introduced
40 days earlier and a study would be costly. He el aborated
that their own costs had been built in.

Representative Otiz felt the kind of people interested in
gam ng nmay not be the sane as those interested in donating.

M. Fellmn believed that when the Permanent Fund D vidend
had been reduced the past year it had a large inpact. He
had received nmany phone calls received fromindividuals who
sent noney to relatives out of state for themto play Power
Bal |

Representative Ortiz asked if M. Fellman saw the bill as a
way to augnent current obligations nade to education or as
a suppl enent.

M. Fellman answered that he could not speak for future
| egi slatures. The bill would create another pot of noney
that could help children. The sponsor hoped it would be the
case, but there was not a guarantee.

Representative Guttenberg agreed that it was a group of
individuals interested in gamng, which was different from
i ndi viduals interested in donating.

3:01:42 PM

M. Fellman replied that the larger the prize, the nore
peopl e wanted to pl ay.

Representative Quttenberg love M. Fellman's enthusiasm
The only raffle tickets he typically only bought raffle
tickets he sold hinself. He wondered how realistic the
nunbers were in terns of participation

Co-Chair Seaton relayed a list of testifiers available for
guesti ons.

M. Fellman relayed that 95 percent of the noney would go
t owards education, and benefitted Al aska's children.

Co-Chair Seaton invited Nina Kenpel to testify.

3:07: 00 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



NI NA KEMPEL, CEO, ALASKA COMMUNI TY FOUNDATI ON, ANCHORAGE
stated that Pick dick Gve was part of a |larger
partnership with other organizations. She stated that it
was a natural partnership to support the program for
nonprofits in the state.

Co-Chair Seaton asked that her witten testinony be
provi ded.

Vi ce-Chair Gara thanked the organization for all it did for
t he state.

Representative WIson asked how much was donated to the
charity and how nuch it received.

Ms. Kenmpel responded that that the organi zation received 93
percent.

3:13: 57 PM

Representative WIlson was confused. She remarked that there
was an adm ni stration fee of 15 percent.

Ms. Kenpel clarified that 7 percent of the admnistration
f ees cane from t he vol untary participation of
organi zations. The remaining 8 percent cane from the
private partnership wth organizations across the state
from donors.

Representative WIson surmised that $7 dollars of $100
woul d be utilized for the admnistrative fee, and the other
$93 would go to the organi zation. Ms. Kenpel agreed.

Representative WIson stressed that losing the private
donati ons, would result in the state ~covering the
additional cost to cover the 15 percent. M. Kenpel agreed,
and stated that the hope was that the 7 percent would
eventual |y support the program She stressed that the state
did not pay any portion of the funding.

Co-Chair Seaton relayed the testifiers available online.

3:16:49 PM

Representative Pruitt asked about the admnistrative costs
to the state.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



Ms. Kenpel deferred to Ms. Race.

Representative Pruitt asked if the noney cane from the
private donati ons.

Co-Chair Seaton thought the conmmttee was going too far
into the weeds. He wanted nenbers to refocus on the bill
before the commttee.

Representative Pruitt was trying to understand the | ong-
term inpacts and the fall back for the Pick dick Gve
program

Ms. Kenpel answered that it was not a part of the 15
per cent .

Representative Quttenberg queried prelimnary analysis of
t he i nmpacts program

Ms. Kenpel responded that the organization had not been
involved in a research and wanted to be part of the effort.

3:24: 00 PM

DEBORAH BI TNEY, VICE PRESIDENT AND CH EF ADM N STRATI VE
OFFI CER, RASMUSON FOUNDATI ON, ANCHORAGE (via
t el econf erence), stated that the Rasnuson Foundation

invested $3 mllion in Pick Cdick Gve. She shared that
over ten years, Pick Cick Gve had raised approxinmtely
$20 nmillion for nonprofit service providers across the
state. She felt that the lottery deduction would have a
direct affect on the Pick Cick Gve program and felt that
the legislation had not been properly examned to assess
the inpact of the dividend application process, the
nonprofit sector, or the people that it served. She
stressed that the addition to the application process
required tine, resources, and expensive testing. She felt
that short notice nandated adjustnents to the applications
can fail. She stated that the failure of the application
had a direct negative inpact on the associated prograns and
t he departnent.

Representative WIson wondered how often a charitable
organi zati on was added to the Pick Cick Gve list.

Ms. Bitney did not know the answer to that question.

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



Ms. Kenpel announced that each organization nust neet
standards when wanted to be added to the Pick dick Gve
list.

3:28: 06 PM

Representative Wlson felt that there were already ongoing
adjustnents to the application.

Ms. Kenpel responded that there were not constant changes
to the process. She stated that there were updates to the
nodi fications to the website and technol ogy. She stressed
that the process was understood by the participating
nonprofits, and would continue in the sane historic manner.

Representative Wl son relayed that there was a concern that
adding a charity or program would be costly. She understood
that the Pick Cick Gve list was al ready adjusting.

Co-Chair Seaton stated that the issue was about adding a
factor into the PFD application process, and not related to
the list that was assigned to Pick dick G ve.

Ms. Bitney agreed.

Co-Chair Seaton stressed that the issue was related to the
addition of the PFD technical system

Representative WIson surnmised that the program would be
nore affordable, if it were integrated in Pick dick G ve.

Ms. Bitney responded that the statement was accurate. She
furthered that she was concerned wth adding a process to
t he application.

Representative WIson wondered whether there was another
part of state governnent, besides the University, that was
part of Pick dick G ve.

Ms. Kenpel replied that only nonprofit organizations could
participate in Pick dick Guve, so there were no
organi zations that were part of Pick dick G ve.

3:32:32 PM

Vi ce-Chair Gara queried the cost of running the program He

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



Ms. Kenpel responded that she was not familiar with the
$275,000 fiscal note. She stated that she had seen an
inaccurate fiscal note for $8000. She stressed that
i npl enenting a new program required a robust system for
dealing with questions, and did not see that systemin the
plan. She also wanted to know how that cost would be
covered.

Co-Chair Seaton relayed that M. Race could answer the
guesti on.

Vice-Chair Gara felt that the proceeds from the cost would
pay for the adm nistration

Co-Chair Seaton was going to get the other invited
testi nony online.

3:34:45 PM

ELI ZABETH RI PLEY, PRESI DENT OF THE FORAKER GROUP, ATLANTA,
GA (via teleconference), shared that the Foraker G oup
hel ped to inplement Pick dick G ve.

Representative WIlson asked if M. R pley was concerned
with the addition of the inconme tax being part of the
process.

Ms. Ripley was not famliar with what she was asking.

Representative WIson suggested that advertising frequently
"ate up costs."

Ms. Ripley thought sone of the advertising could be
coor di nat ed.

Representative WIlson felt that the |evel of awareness
woul d help bring nore people to Pick Cick G ve.

3:43: 42 PM

Co-Chair Seaton stated that sone testifiers were concerned
wi th how the prograns woul d interact.

Representative WIson thought there was the sanme problem

with Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute (ASM) and tourism
He felt that there may be conpetition in the progranms. She

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



did not know how a study woul d be done to determ ne how the
prograns mght interact.

Representative Otiz spoke to the uniqueness of the
Per manent Fund and the Pick Click Gve program He asked if
there was confidence in how to study the inpact of the
program

Ms. Ripley answered they would like to have nuch nore
comuni cati on about SB 78 to work through concerns.

Co-Chair Seaton had no idea whether there were exanples
around the country about |l|ocations that had started a
|ottery or Power Ball.

3:46: 19 PM

Co- Chair Seaton OPENED public testinony.

DANI EL LYNCH, SELF, SOLDOTNA  (via t el econference),
conplimented the House to find real solutions to the
problenms facing the state. He stated the bill was no nore
than a ginmmck or diversion to distract from finding rea
solutions. He provided further detail about living in
another state in the past. The nodel would never be
profitable in Alaska;, however, there was potential in
limted casinos. He expounded on the idea, which he
believed would create enploynent and diversification. He
thought it would bring in revenue. He spoke to enpty
buildings in Kenai and Anchorage that would work as
casi nos. He knew what manure snelled Iike - Iike SB 78.

3:49: 23 PM

JOY STEWARD, SELF, HOMER (via tel econference), spoke to her
concerns about the bill. She applauded all |[|egislators who
were working hard to find a way to balance the state's
budget. She did support finding increased funding for
education. She thought the bill could negatively inpact
nonprofits. She referred to earlier testinony that had
cited concerns.

3:52: 07 PM

TAMW SM TH, NEA ALASKA, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of SB 78. She was currently serving as a
director for NEA Al aska. She suggested that although SB 78

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



was not a total solution but was a sort-term fix. She had
received an emmil that non-tenured teachers would be
receiving layoff notices, which wultimately would hurt
Al aska's students. She advocated for a long-term solution
It was not the solution for the large fiscal gap. She
hi ghlighted the necessity of passing a total fiscal plan
along with a broad-based tax. SB 78 was a supplenental
effort to a larger plan. She thanked the commttee.

3:55: 33 PM

BILL WRIGHT, UNITED WAY OF TANANA VALLEY, FAIRBANKS (via
tel econference), stated that his agency relied on donations
from Pick. Cick. Gve. He advocated for further study of
the raffle although he was not speaking against it.

3:58:12 PM

M KE COONS, SELF, PALMER (via teleconference), spoke in
opposition of the bill. He thought the bill would have a
huge inpact on the senior prograns. He agreed wth
Representative WIlson that giving to charity would be
greatly inpacted with the reduction of the dividend. He
opposed the bill as well as an inconme tax. He provided the
exanple of the lottery in the state of Onhio. He gave kudos
to the house Mnority for standing agai nst the incone tax.

Co- Chair Seaton CLOSED Public Testinony.

4:01:40 PM

Representative WIson wondered if it was an appropriate
time to hear from Ms. Race.

SARA  RACE, Dl RECTOR - DIVISION OF ADM NI STRATI ON,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, JUNEAU, i ntroduced herself.

Representative W/ son wondered whether the division set up
Pick dick Gve, and would that sanme managenent be in place
for the programoutlined in the | egislation.

Ms. Race replied that there were sone admnistration
procedures with Pick Cick Gve. The proposed program would
add a question to the PFD application that would allow an
i ndividual to participate in the raffle, and select in $100
increnents. She stated that it would be the last priority
order itemto pay out, after approval. She stated that the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



portion would return to the applicant, should there not be
$100 avail abl e for paynent.

Representative WIson queried the added cost for the PFD
application.

Ms. Race answered that nost infrastructure was already
built into the program but there was an addition of a
question to the application and the creation of the vender
in the vender table.

4:03:39 PM

Representative WIson queried the anticipated ongoing costs
to the program

Ms. Race replied that there was a one-tine additional cost.
She furthered that the outgoing years would not be too
great. She stated that the there needed to be creative
solutions to advertise the program She stated that the
following years allowed for 2 percent available after the
first year for advertising.

Representative WIson queried the accounting costs to Pick
Cdick Gve.

Ms. Race responded that there were accounting costs, but
did not necessarily cone from the state. She stated that
there was a $250 application fee for businesses that w shed
to participate in Pick dick Gve. She stated that United
Way vetted the applications.

Co-Chair Seaton wondered who advertised and adm nistrated
t he program

Ms. Race replied that after the first year of the program
2 percent was dedicated to adm nistration and adverti sing.

Co-Chair Seaton asked wondered whether the division would
absorb the work.

Ms. Race responded that there were no additional personnel
needed for the program and the 2 percent would be used for
advertising and adm ni stration costs.

SB 73 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



4:08:32 PM
AT EASE

4:13:41 PM
RECONVENED

#hb105
HOUSE BILL NO. 105

"An Act establishing the Gordon Haber Denali Wlf
Speci al Managenent Area."

4:13: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  ANDY  JOSEPHSON, SPONSOR, provi ded sone
background for the bill. The legislation aimed to create
t he Gordon Haber Denali WIlf Special Mnagenent Area which
woul d be a buffer zone near the border of Denali Nationa
Park where wolves may not be hunted. The area would be
named for Gordon Haber, who was a biologist that had done
wol f-prey research in Denali National Park and other areas
of Al aska from 1966 to 2009. Wil e doing the work that he
| oved, Gordon tragically died in a plane crash in Denali
National Park on Cctober 14, 20009. For many years Denali
Nati onal Park had been known as one of the best places in
the world to view wild wolves. In 2013, Denali had 530, 921
visitors, who contributed $513, 355,000 to Al aska’s econony.
The opportunity to view wolves is a big incentive to visit
the park. Unfortunately, wolf view ng success has declined
dramatically. A buffer zone previously established in 2000
on the park’s eastern boundary to protect the wolves was
removed by the Board of Gane in 2010. In 2014, less than 6%
of park visitors were able to see wolves, down from 45
percent back in 2010. WIf popul ation has declined from 116
in spring 2006 to 50 in spring 2014. House Bill 105 hel ps
to correct these trends.

Representati ve Kawasaki referred to the map in nmenber files
(copy on file). He asked why the blue area was not part of
the area and bl ack.

Co-Chair Seaton wanted to ensure that invited testinony had
a chance to get on record.

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



4:28:54 PM

RI CK STEI NER, PROFESSOR, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA,

prepared statenent (copy on file):

read from a

I appreci ate the opportunity to provi de
coment in support of HB 105, and | ook
forward to any questions you may have
af terward.
For the record, I am a conservation
bi ol ogi st with Qasis Earth
(www. oasi seart h. con in Anchorage, and
was a prof essor with the University of
Al aska from 1980 — 2010, stationed in
Kot zebue, Cordova, and Anchorage.

As | egislators, you all face many difficult
decisions this session, but HB 105 is not
one of t hem Thi s bill should be
an easy and unani nous “YES.”

1. One sinple standard w th which to
decide bills in front of you is: does
it hurt, or help the Al aska econony?

And regarding HB 105, it is an
over whel m ng econonmic positive.

In these chal | engi ng economc tines t he

st at e needs to do ever yt hi ng possible to
support the Al aska econony.

One of t he easiest and nost cost-effective
neasures | awrakers can take to enhance our

econony IS to do ever yt hi ng possible to
enhance the wildlife tourism i ndustry -
a $2.7 billion/year i ndustry in Al aska
(1 will elaborate nore on that a bi t
| ater).
2. Anot her critical standard to base your

deci si ons on IS
common ownership of al
by all Al askans, enbodied in
Article 8, Section 3: "Common

VWher ever
wildlife,
common use.

occurring in

and waters are res

Al of
Denal i,

us own and have equa
i ncluding the 70,000

House Fi nance Committee 18

their

the principle of fairness and
resources (including wildlife)

the State Constitution,
Use":

state, fish,
to the people for

nat ur a
erved

in
t he

access to the wol ves
Al askans who visit

04/ 28/ 17 2: 04 P.M



park each year -- not just the 2 or 3 individuals who
hunt and trap them al ong the NE boundary.

and this nonth nmarks the 100th anniversary of Al aska's
nmost iconic tourism destination. The would be the
per f ect tinme

to finally resol ve the century-old probl em
of conserving park wildlife along t he
park’s eastern boundary. HB 105 goes
a | ong way toward doi ng just that.

[ The only friendly anendnent | woul d

respectfully suggest is to include, in
addition to wolves, a prohibition on t ake
of all park predator species - bear s,
| ynx, wol veri ne, coyot e, etc., as

t hese are valuable watchable wildlife for the
park as wel | . ]

Wl f Townshi ps History I'n 1906, when
east coast hunt er - nat ural i st Charl es
Shel don expl ored the Denal i ar ea, he
not ed t hat commercial hunters selling Dal
sheep neat to rail road workers and
m ners wer e deci mati ng | ocal wldlife
popul ati ons. Shel don went to
Washi ngt on D.C. and, al ong with the
Boone and Crockett d ub, advocat ed
establi shment of M. MKinley National Park
as a “gane refuge.” Pr esi dent

Wodrow WIlson signed the original 2
mllion acre park into law on Feb. 26,

1917. But the precise boundari es
necessary to pr ot ect park wildlife were unclear,
i nperfect, and continued to be debat ed.

In particular, |ands nort heast of t he

original park boundary, where par k

wildlife mgrate seasonal |y, wer e

consi dered by many to need park

protection as well.
Accor di ng to Fai r banks historian Ed Davi s,
since the initial establ i shment of the park,

t here have been many unsuccessf ul attenpts

to add | ands al ong the northeast boundary,

now known as the “Wol f Townshi ps” and

“Stanpede Trail,” into the park to pr ot ect

park wildlife:

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



1922 - AK  Railroad proposes to i ncl ude
Wbl f Townships in McKinley Park to pr ot ect

Park wildlife. 1965 — State sel ects Wl f
Townshi ps, but cites need to expand Par k
to pr ot ect caribou, and that existing Park
boundary is “an arbitrary line.” 1969 -
Johnson adm ni stration considers, but
declines, to add WIf Townships into Park 1978
- Wbl f Townshi ps found wor t hy for
inclusion in Denal i Nati onal Monunent, but

| ands had been selected by State. 1980
- The original version of ANI LCA

included the WoIf Townships within the new

par k boundari es because this area provides
critical habitat for park wildlife. Although

this area was renoved fromthe final bill,
the Senate report acconpanyi ng ANI LCA
made it cl ear the expectation was for
the wolf townships to becone part of
Denal i : The prime resource for which
the north addition is established is t he
critical range necessary to support
popul ati ons of noose, wol f, and
cari bou as part of an i nt egral
ecosystem Public enj oynent of t hese
out st andi ng wildlife values would thus be
assur ed.

4:38: 07 PM

Representative Otiz noted that the buffer was elimnated
in 2010. He queried the reason for that decision.

M. Steiner replied that it derived from the Park Service
i deology from various interest groups. He renmarked that
there were several proposals asking that the existing
buffer be expanded, because it was too small. He remarked
that there were as many as 19 park wolves in that snal

buffer. He remarked that 15 to 20 percent of the total park
popul ation was killed after the wolves crossed the buffer.

Representative Otiz canme from Southeast Al aska and could
certainly understand the benefits of an area with wildlife
viewng, and felt that tourism to view wldlife had a
greater effect on the econony than hunting.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



Representative Quttenberg suggested that the area had been
his previously in his district. He felt that the buffer
change did not have to do wth biological certainty.

M. Steiner agreed. He stated that the Denali wlf was a
political pawn in the process.

Vice-Chair Gara noted that the opposition letters were
focused on the inpact of subsistence and other hunting.

M. Steiner responded that the trapping and hunting of
wol ves in the area was non-subsistence, rather it was sport
hunti ng.

Vice-Chair Gara conmented that the letters probably were
referring to nore wol ves and | ess noose.

M. Steiner stated that there were conplaints about the
hi gh nunber of noose in the area. He remarked that the
cl osed area would be 340,000 acres. He stressed that nost
of the nmpose hunting took place to the east of the area. He
stressed that there would be mllions of dollars from the
tourismindustry as a result of the |egislation.

4:43: 40 PM

SEAN MCGUI RE, ALASKANS FOR W LDLI FE, FAI RBANKS, agreed with
the previous speaker's statenent that Denali was the crown
jewel for the area. People went to Denali to see the
mountain and wildlife including wolves. He suggested that
the |land managenent for the skinny He relayed that people
were baiting wol ves to go outside of the boundary.

M. MQiire objected profusely people baiting wolves and
removing the opportunity for tourists to see wolves. He
recalled Cecil the lion that was lured out of the park and
gunned down. He thought the state was allowi ng people to
bait the wolves out of the park.

4:49: 40 PM

AL BARRETTE, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in
favor of the |egislation.

Co-Chair Seaton noted comrittee nenbers had his witten
testinmony in their packets.

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



Representative WIson asked about page 3, lines 20 and 21.
She surmised that the interpretation would be that
accidentally shooting a wolf could result in a m sdeneanor.

M. Barrette responded that the issue was related to
trappi ng, not hunting.

4:55:36 PM

Representative Quttenberg noted that the area west of Healy
was the bus from "Into the WIld." He stressed that people
shoul d never go in that area.

M. Barrette asked if it was a question.

Representati ve GQuttenberg stated t hat it was an
observati on.

TIM LESCMER, SELF, ANCHORACGE (via teleconference), worked
with grey wolves and took care of them at the zoo in town.
He spent nore tinme around wolves than 90 percent of the
popul ation. He thought what was getting lost was the
intelligent of the animals and the centurion nature of the
animals. He invited nenbers to conme neet the wolves
personal ly. He appl auded Representative Josephson. He spoke
in support of HB 73.

Co- Chair Seaton CLOSED Public Testinmony for HB 105.

Co-Chair Seaton remarked that he wanted sonme questions
about subsistence addressed at the next hearing on the
bill.

4:59: 23 PM

Representative WIlson asked that the departnent address the
i ndetermi nate fiscal note.

Representative Josephson responded that the fiscal note
related to the original version of the bill.

Representative WIson responded that there were 3 fisca
notes and it was possible that some of them were not
related to the current version of the bill.

Co-Chair Seaton clarified the version before the commttee.

House Fi nance Committee 22 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



Representati ve W | son request ed t he fiscal not e
clarification at the next hearing.

Vice-Chair Gara asked about the m sdeneanor issue in the
bill.

Co-Chair Seaton asked to put the question off wuntil the
next bill hearing.

Co-Chair Seaton announced that anendnents were due by
Thur sday, May 6, 2017 at 5:00 p.m

HB 105 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

5:03:34 PM

Representative Otiz asked about amendnments for SB 78.

Co-Chair Seaton conveyed that that anendnents for SB 78
were also due by Thursday, May 6, 2017 at 5:00 p.m He
rel ayed the agenda for the follow ng neeting. He indicated
the following week would be focused on general fiscal

i npact .

Co-Chair Seaton recessed the neeting to a call of the
chair. He recessed the neeting to a call of the chair
[ Note: the neeting never reconvened].

#
ADJ OURNVENT
5:05:18 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 5:05 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 04/ 28/ 17 2:04 P. M



